
              
 
 
 

www.sweetwatersprings.com 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 

October 6, 2022 Regular Meeting 
6:30 p.m. 

 
Meeting link:  

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.ph
p?MTID=m30bbbcfeeae104fc02bd316737eb28e8 

Meeting number: 2568 196 4999 
Password: 8mxGhFUbv62 

 
OR 

 
Join by phone: +1-415-655-0001 US Toll 

Access code: 2568 196 4999 
Password: 86944382 

 
 

All guests that join the virtual meeting will be muted with their camera/ video turned off.  
Guest(s) will be unmuted and video turned on when they are speaking.  Proper decorum 

including appearance is required. 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda unless the Board President allows additional time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 

A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 

 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m30bbbcfeeae104fc02bd316737eb28e8
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m30bbbcfeeae104fc02bd316737eb28e8


 2 

II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 

non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 

 
A. Approval of the following Minutes of the September 1, 2022 Regular Board 

Meeting 
 

B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  

Note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, 
but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that item during 
the Board meeting. 
 

D. Action to Reconfirm findings of Resolution 21-18 re continuation of remote 
meetings 

 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 

 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 

 
A. Discussion/Action re Board Subcommittee Reports (standing item) (Est. time 5 min.) 

Subcommittees: General Manager Transition 
  Website/Billing System 
 

 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   

(Discussion/Action (if any) for each item listed on the report.) 
 
 1. Laboratory Testing/Regulatory Compliance 
 2. Water Production and Sales 
 3. Leaks 
 4. In-House Construction Projects 
 5. Earthquake September 13, 2022 
 6. CIP 2020-21 Old River Road/Woodland Drive 
 7. Grants / Cal OES/FEMA Grant 
 8. Curtailments Update 
 9. New Website 
 10. MuniLink Billing System 
 11. Union Local 39 Update 
 12. Gantt Chart 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  



 3 

 
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION 

 
A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 

Evaluation 
 Title: General Manager 

 
ADJOURN 



 4 

Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  

• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 

GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 
5087364.1  



 1 

 
 
 

 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: September 1, 2022 

 
(*In order discussed) 

September 1, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder (arr. 6:50 p.m.) 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Eric Schanz, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, District Counsel 
      Mark O’Flynn 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.) 
 

The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Schaap at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 

p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
President Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar.  Director Spillane seconded.  Motion carried 4-0 on the following items:  
 

A. Approval of the following Minutes of the August 4, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments except for 

those associated with RGS 
 
C. Receipt of items of Correspondence 
 
D. Action to Reconfirm findings of Resolution 21-18 re continuation of remote 

meetings 
 
 



 2 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
None. 
 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
(Prior to discussion the Board worked on resolving some technical difficulties.) 
 
V-C. (6:43 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2020-21 CalPERS Valuation Report and 

District Unfunded Liability report.  Administrative Manager Julie Kenny gave an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  There were no public comments.  No action 
was taken.   

 
V-A. (6:54 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Returning to in-person Board meetings.  President 

Schaap gave an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-B. (7:01 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re New billing system and website.  The GM gave a 

overview of this item.  Further overview was provided by the ad hoc committee (Directors 
Robb-Wilder and Spillane).  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
authorize the General Manager to move forward with a contract with  Muni-Link for the 
District’s billing system.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  Further 
discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to move forward with transitioning to the 
new District website with Streamline. 

 
V-D. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Board Subcommittee Reports (standing item).  

President Schaap provided an overview of this item.  Director Holmer provided an update 
regarding activity of the General Manager Advisory Committee.  Discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken  

 
 

VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:35 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing / Regulatory Compliance 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. In-House Construction Projects 
5. CIP 2020-21 Old River Road/Woodland Drive 
6. Cal OES/FEMA Grant 
7. Curtailments Update 
8. Canyon 6 Line Installation 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
 

VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:02 p.m.) 

 
Director Spillane gave a summary of the MAC meeting  
 
 

VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:07 p.m.) 
 

1. Website/billing system progress 
2. Subcommittees 



 3 

 
 

IX. CLOSED SESSION (8:08a p.m.) 
 
At 8:08 p.m. President Schaap announced the items in Closed Session.   
 
At 8:09  p.m. the Board took a brief recess. 
 
At 8:15 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:38 p.m. the 
meeting reconvened from Closed Session and the following action was announced: 

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 

Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz 
Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers, Local 39 

 No action was taken. 
 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 

Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz 
Unrepresented positions: Field Manager 

Administrative Manager 
Senior Crew Supervisor 

  No action was taken. 
 
C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) --  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND MEYERS NAVE LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 
Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz 
Title: District Counsel 

  No action was taken. 
 
 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE (cont.) (8:39 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-E. (8:39 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 22-19, Ratifying Union Agreement to 

provide a one-time mid-contract bonus and Resolution 22-20 to provide the same 
bonus to unrepresented employees.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  There were no public comments.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
Resolution 22-19, Approving a Side Letter with International Union of Operating 
Engineers, Stationary Local 39 (Union) that every Union-Represented Employee 
Employed by District on August 14, 2022, Shall Receive a One-Time, Non-Pensionable 
Lump Sum Bonus of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) in Recognition of 
Employees’ Ongoing Efforts and Work for the District, and Resolution 22-20 , Approving 
a Contract Addendum to Each Unrepresented Employee of the District Except the 
General Manager, Providing for a One-Time, Non-Pensionable Lump Sum Bonus of Two 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) in Recognition of Employees’ Ongoing Efforts 
and Work for the District.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.    

 
V-F. (8:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 22-21, Approving Contract with 

Meyers Nave et al. for Legal Services.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 22-21, 
Approving Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Legal Services Dated October 1, 
2006, Between the Sweetwater Springs Water District and Meyers Nave, a Professional 
Corporation.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   

 
 

 
ADJOURN 

 



 4 

The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 

 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        



SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Eric Schanz, General Manager  
 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2022  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

1.  Laboratory Testing/ Regulatory Compliance: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD 
water meets all known State and Federal water quality standards.  

 
2.  Water Production and Sales: Water sales in August were 22,555 units (51.77 AF 

Guerneville cycle). Compared to this time last year water sales were higher, and water 
production were lower (Sales 60.37 AF and Production 47.57 AF Guerneville). Total 
combined water production for August was 73.59 AF.   

 
3.  Leaks: Water main breaks and service breaks continue to trend down in August. (Figure2). 

There was a total of four watermain leak repairs in August requiring 33 work hours total, 
and nine service leaks requiring 42 work hours total.   

   
4. In-House Construction Projects: September projects included installing new 1 inch 

service on River Lane and raising valve boxes on Rio Nido Road after the Sonoma County 
Road Department paved the road. 
 

5. Earthquake September 13, 2022: A 4.4 magnitude earthquake occurred on the Rogers 
Creek fault with an epicenter north of Santa Rosa.  The earthquake was felt throughout the 
area.  The next morning Operations staff performed a precautionary system wide inspection 
of facilities and watermains and reported no damage. 

 
6. CIP 20-21 Old River Road/Woodland Drive:  Piazza Construction is finishing up 

mainline installation on lower portion of Woodland Drive.  
 

7. Grants: CAL OES/FEMA Grant: The reimbursement for Covid Testing was received in 
the amount of $20,000.00. 



 
8. Curtailments Update:  The Division of Water rights is in the process of conducting 

inspections at all curtailment sites. We are currently scheduling a site visit with them. As 
discussed in last month’s GM report, the Division of Water Rights has added our License 
A024929 to the list of curtailments on the lower Russian River. The districts two Pre-1914 
Water Rights S009054 and S009055 are not curtailed and are still in effect. The License 
was curtailed based on insufficient flows on the river and on the priority of the license.  
Fortunately, the district has the two Pre-1914 Water Rights and can continue direct 
diversions to meet demand.  I spoke with our water rights attorney Matthew Emrick about 
the curtailment of the license, and he agreed that the water rights are sufficient to meet the 
current demand for the water system and added that if further curtailments are instated that 
we can file for certain exemptions to the curtailment for “Minimum Human Health and 
Safety”.  

 
9. New Web Site: The new web site is active.  There has been no feedback from the public.    

The Directors Portal is ready for content. Directors should contact Julie Kenny for content 
to be added. 

 
10.  Muni Link Billing System: The contract has been signed and the initial “Implementation 

Questionnaire” is completed. Full implementation is still at least four months out. See 
attached agreement and Schedule “A”.  

 
11. Union Local 39 Update: Side letter for the Crew Leader/Senior Crew Leader is still under 

review by the Union.  
 
12. Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is currently being updated for 2022-23 and will return to the 

Managers Report in November.  
 

  



General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 7 
October 6, 2022 
 

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Nov-
10

May-
11

Nov-
11

May-
12

Nov-
12

May-
13

Nov-
13

May-
14

Nov-
14

May-
15

Nov-
15

May-
16

Nov-
16

May-
17

Nov-
17

May-
18

Nov-
18

May-
19

Nov-
19

May-
20

Nov-
20

May-
21

Nov-
21

May-
22

D
iff

er
en

ce
 (%

)

Sa
le

s 
an

d 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

(A
F)

Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since November 2010

Series2

Series1

Series3



General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 7 
October 6, 2022 
 

8

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

 350

 400

Oct-09 Oct-10 Oct-11 Oct-12 Oct-13 Oct-14 Oct-15 Oct-16 Oct-17 Oct-18 Oct-19 Oct-20 Oct-21

B
re

ak
s

Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since October 2009

Main Breaks

Service Breaks

Total Leaks



General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 7 
October 6, 2022 
 
 



General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 7 
October 6, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 



` 

 
 

 

FY01-02 FY02-03 FY03-04 FY04-05 FY05-06 FY 06-07 FY 07-08 FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 22-23
JULY 34,371 26,447 26,355 33,578 22,195 27,469 27,147 28,091 21,035 17,808 20,061 22,850 25,890 22,074 16,377 19,044 19,608 20,255 19,273 22,297 21,558 20,306
AUGUST39,803 37,750 42,080 41,615 37,799 41,863 37,202 37,907 34,878 32,328 28,486 33,190 29,163 32,208 26,070 26,811 29,485 28,325 27,419 28,582 26,302 22,555
SEPTEM 33,723 34,532 36,056 35,309 29,823 35,984 31,721 32,753 30,320 29,673 26,091 29,829 26,157 24,091 21,678 22,893 24,037 25,805 24,886 27,175 22,746
OCTOBE40,672 34,063 37,008 38,553 38,707 37,900 36,493 34,938 32,282 32,334 32,091 33,727 31,628 27,724 24,606 29,333 29,495 32,827 27,310 30,099 24,731
NOVEM 28,272 28,729 26,973 27,839 26,680 24,076 24,444 25,746 23,111 24,160 21,350 22,218 20,729 19,489 20,101 19,462 21,884 21,351 22,640 23,173 17,984
DECEMB25,380 27,758 27,283 25,508 23,925 25,550 21,556 24,762 21,116 20,802 20,299 22,818 23,452 21,256 20,873 18,070 21,297 20,468 22,288 25,982 21,110
JANUAR16,091 19,287 16,799 15,416 16,127 15,862 13,309 14,631 14,764 13,734 14,645 16,242 16,316 11,914 12,727 13,676 14,146 15,335 12,925 15,529 15,062
FEBRUA 21,697 23,010 20,689 19,695 22,716 20,963 18,647 21,199 19,233 18,386 16,641 18,372 20,967 17,770 17,189 16,504 17,693 16,950 17,284 15,506 18,727
MARCH 17,207 15,092 17,374 14,985 15,456 16,693 14,556 14,417 14,414 12,387 12,569 13,884 13,772 12,351 13,058 12,315 11,657 12,653 12,827 12,846 11,236
APRIL 17,728 19,527 21,406 21,089 18,825 21,047 19,227 18,414 17,611 17,129 17,936 17,914 17,053 16,636 17,748 16,809 16,279 18,547 16,886 17,038 17,024
MAY 19,118 16,237 19,793 16,372 13,921 15,402 15,721 15,861 14,273 14,134 14,880 15,075 14,514 16,120 14,217 13,083 13,011 13,319 14,602 15,866 13,375
JUNE 29,799 27,074 28,882 22,512 24,108 25,457 29,211 26,259 19,143 20,871 23,765 26,850 22,092 20,436 19,020 19,198 21,220 20,612 21,453 24,720 21,975

NUMBER OF WATER UNITS SOLD  FY 22 - 23






























	AAAgenda  10-06-2022
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE
	ADJOURN
	Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals

	AAAMinutes 09-01-2022-2022
	I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.)
	II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)
	III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)
	IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) *
	VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:35 p.m.)
	VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS
	(8:02 p.m.)

	A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Gov. Code Section 54957.6)
	Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz
	Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers, Local 39
	B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Gov. Code Section 54957.6)
	Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz
	Unrepresented positions: Field Manager
	Administrative Manager
	Senior Crew Supervisor
	C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1) --  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND MEYERS NAVE LABOR NEGOTIATIONS
	Agency Designated Representative: Eric Schanz
	Title: District Counsel
	V. ADMINISTRATIVE (cont.) (8:39 p.m.) *
	ADJOURN

	Item VI - General Managers Report
	Item VI - General Manager Report OCT 6
	Meeting Date: October 6, 2022

	Item VI.1 - Water license curtailment status
	Item VI.2 - EXECUTED MuniLink Contract

	Handouts

